the 1016 memorial stands today, was blown up by sone secret organisation and
found a watery grave in the Shannon some sixteen ydars ago. The statue should
never have been set up in Limerick. It commemorated Viscount Fitzgibbon who lost
his life at Balaclava. He was the son of the infamous Jghn Fitzgibbon, first car} of
Clare (scconl creation) who was the willing tool of Pit in carrying the Union of
1800, and who more than any other of the garrison class, fomented the rebellion
of 179% in order the more effectively to secure the Union, The ruins of the Fitzgibbon
mansion, Mount Shannon, may be scen near Annacotty|from the Dublin road. The
fortuncs of the family had been built one generation cprlier by the father of John
Fitzgibbon who, during the course of his education foy the Church at the expense
of the Catholic poor, renounced the faith and entered the law where he rose to
eminence in the profession.
The Spring Rice Monument in the public park, PVery jquare, is a worthy memorial
to a great man, Thomas Spring Rice (1790-1866) first Buron Monteagle of Brandon.
A liberal Protestant, he worked strenuously for the upljft of the Catholics and gave
good service in causing the Orange Corporation to he swept out of existence In
1823, He was a strenuous opponent of Repeal in after years, however, and thus
Jast much of his catlice popularity with the citizens.: Limerick men condone his
Jimited political outdook in view of his initial good seryices.

The Memorial of the Manchester Martyrs. Allep, Larkin and O'Brien, is a
noble Celtic cross with figure-group, insct into the boyndary wall of St. Laurence’s
cemetery on the Bruff road. The three men were exdeuted at Mauchester in 1867
for their part in the rescue of two Fenian leaders. Fe will be recalled that Michacl
Hogan (Bard of Thomond) dedicated his collected poerns, Lays and Legends of
‘Thomond, to Caroline Marchioness of Queensberry who nobly tricd to have the
unfortunate i rcpricvcd.

The Tait Memorial Clock Tower in Baker Place recplls the story of a great captain
of industry df a century ago. Tait’s life has never yet been written, though his story,
oddly cnough, might provide morc material for a novel than a page of Limerick’s
history. As i poor Scots boy, Peter Tait first made thelacquaintance of Limerick as a
shop hand ufithe great firm Of Cannock & Co. In the corse of the years, Tait succeed-
cd Sir John Arnott as partier in the firm. He estalflished the Limerick Clothing
Factory in 18so. In the Corporation he was clected [Mayor of Limerick for three
successive years, 1866, 1867 and 1868, His bencfactigns to the poor and his cflorts
for their uplift made him the idol of the city. Unfortimately, he began to dabble in
politics, where he soon found himself out of his depth. [He was persuaded by the Tory
clements in the city to go forward for Parliapent in the clections which
were to decide the fate of the Church cstablishment. The  two Liberal
candidates nominated expressly to support Gladstond's disestablishment of the Irish
Protestant Church, found themselves opposed by Thit and the cditor of a Fenian
newspaper | The sicuation lad all the clements of high comedy but for the violence
with which the campaign was conducted, when a [man lost his life in the angry
demonstrations around the Tait clock. Tait hired in Ris cause the services of Michael
Hogan who liberally pilloried the familics and ancestry of the leading men of the
city. Hogan's praise of his master and the mysterious newspaper cditor met a strange
hemesis some tweaty years later when Tait’s former colleague at the 1868 clections
was unimasked to the world as Richard Piggott, the forger of the leteers published
by the London Times newspapers to bring Parnell b ruin, Tait’s greatest memorial
in Limerick today is, admittedly, the Limerick Clgthing Factory, which has never
ceased production since its establishment 102 years ago.

The 1916 Memorial on Sarsfictd bridge has not yet been completed. The plinth and
bronze scroll, which bears a Gaclic translation of Ui memorable 1916 proclumation
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of the Provisional Government, have been designed with a dignity that Lefits the
greatest event in Irish History of the present century. The first of the bronze statucs,
3 somewhat realistic figure of Thomas Clarke has recently been set i place.

Ancient Treasure of the City

Tnt 1950, on the suggestion of the Lord Bishop of Limerick, an exhibition of ecclesias-
tical relics was held in the city. The Archbishop of Cashel and the Bishop of Killaloe

graciously consented to

rdigious and historic interest.
seventeenth century, won universal

interesting objects inay

1. The O'Dea Mitr
post-Conquest art remaining in Ireland.
made it—Thomas O’ Carryd.
Richard Arthur who ruled the see of Limerick from 1623

further the purpose of the exhibition by loaning objects of
The splendid collection of clialices, mostly of the
adiuiration. A short Jist of some of the more
be given here.
¢ and Crozier, 1418, are the finest examples of medicval
The Mitre is signed by the crafisman who
The Arthur Crucifix, dated 1625, is named after Bishop
to 1646, The Arthur

Chalice, 1625. The MSS Annals of Limerick written by Fr. James White (1715-1768).
The above-mentioned are in the custody of the Bishop of Limerick. The Black Book

of Limerick (1362 is also diocesan property but has remained in the custody ol

Maynooth College for

1. The Pectoral Cross of Bishop

many years past.
Terence Albert O'Brien, O.P. (1600-1651).

The Kilmallock Dominican chalice (1639) and Sarsficld chalice (1647) are preserved
i the Dominican Friary, Glentworth St.

1.

The O'Keeffe chalice (early sixteenth cengury) which was bequeathed some
years ago to the Jesuit Church, is said to have been used by the Nuncio

inuccing

during his visit to Limerick in the days of the Confederation.
(V. Other noteworthy ccelesiastical objects of antiquity preserved in the aty

include: Bishop Arthur’s

altar stone (c.1625) and McCanny chalice (1688) at St.

Munchin’s parish church; Ferall chalice (1619) and Rice chalice (1026) at the Franciscan
Friary; Mcade chalice (1652), Lacy chalice (1662) and Archdeacon monstrance (1751)
at St. Mary’s parish church; Tully chalice (1683) at Mungret College, S.J.; Askeaton
Friary chalice (1719) at St. Mary’s Convent; Howly ciborium (1780) and Thady Quin

monstrance (1726) at St

. John’s Cathedral.

Education

Txcept for a brief period when the Order of Preachers were in control of a Papal

university at Limerick

during the days of the Confederation (1644) and the years

(1882-1908) when an arts degree could be gained, under the charter of the old
Royal University of Ircland, at Mungret College, the city of Limerick has not cnjoyed
facilities for higher education. The project of sctting up a recognised college of the

National University of Ireland within the city has been much dis

ussed of recent

years. No on¢ will gainsay the desirability of such a scheme in view of the fact that

at present many comp

prevented through the

from their homes. It is simply an aceident of the place of birth that plac

cducation within the

reach of the sons and daughters of

ctent students from so 1;\1‘;_;0 an urban pupulution centre are
high cost of living from pursuing their higher studies away
3 university
middle class families in

Dubtin, Cork or Galway but denies the same to younyg people of like social status 1y
Linerick. Financial considerations rule out the near possibility of sctting up a fully
organised universicy college with its nwmerous faculties in Limerick. The ary »

determined, however,

to the present two sug

that souie beginning should be made in the near future, Up
gestions have been put forward both of which merit sympa-

dhetic consideration. Those who sce Limerick as an expanding industrial centre clauu
that an insticute of higher technology will provide an outlet and promising prospeets
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for students of genuine merit, Others defend Limerick’s right to have a faculty of
agriculture and dairy science. There is much to be said for the Jatter proposal since
Limerick is the capital city of the Golden Vein. Meanwhile, Limerick is splendidly
provided with opportunitics for sccondary education.

st. Munchin’s College, situated in Henry St., was established by Bishop O'Dwyer
in 1886. It is the diocesan seminary. Although it was founded late in the contury us
compared with the Trish seminaries throughout the country, it can trace its lincage
back to the first foundation made by Bishop Young at Palmerstown in 1796. It had
varying fortunes of location and periods of duration. For some years before the sem-
inary was finally set up in its present home(the former town residence of Lord Lim-
erick), its pupils studied at Mungret College.

Sacred Heart College Limerick. The Jesuits returned to Lunerick in March 1859.
The Socicty of Jesus had been suppressed in 1773 but restored in (814. It was only
natural to expect that for many years to come the Society in Ireland had to go through
the uphill work of rebuilding their mission on the few members who came to Ireland
in the year of their restoration. The Socicty was ready, however, by 185y, on the
invitation of Bishop Ryan, to return to a city with which it had been associated back
to the days of its founder, St. Ignatius. The Jesuit College of today proudly claims
continuity with the old Jesuit foundations at Limerick, of the XVIth, XVIilh
and XV1ilth centurics. The visitor will notice on the facade of the new College
building in the Crescent that the corner stone of the old residence in Englishtown
dated 1647, occupies a position symuietrical with the corner stone placed by the
Lord Bishop of Limerick, Most Rev. Dr. O’Neill, in November 1940.

Schools of the Irish Christian Brothers arc in the four city parishes. Their second-
ary school in Sexton Strect is the largest in the city. The Brothers also have schools
in Co. Limerick, at Glin and Adare.

The Brothers of the Christian Schools (de la Salle) have two schools in the
county. Their foundation at Hospital (diocese of Emly) caters for primary, prepara=
tory and secondary pupils. The Brothers” foundation at Bruffis the parochial primary
school for boys.

Glenstal Priory, Murroe. The Benedictines opened their school of art and crafts =
manship about twenty-five vears ago. Their work now includes a sccondary school.
Salesian Agricultural College. The Society of St. john Bosco have for many
years conducted this College, at Copsewood, Pallaskenry. Students from all parts
of the country pursue here a course of agricultural science and farming method
recognised by the Departient of Agriculture.

Convents of the Faithful Companions of Jesus. The foundations at Laurcl Fhtl
(m the city) and at Bruff, founded in the 1840's are the oldest secondary schools tor
girls in the diocese.

Secondary schools for girls have been ovened in Limerick in the last few decades
by the Sisters of Mercy, the Sisters of the Presentation and by the Salesian nuns.
The Sisters of Merey, whose work is widely extended and varied, throughout the
diocese, conduct a governmental Training College for womien in primary cducation.
Villiers’ School, Henry Street, was founded under the will of Hannah Villiers
for the cducation of children of all Protestant denominations particularly of the cicy
and countics Limerick, Clare and Tipperary. It is a secondary school tor boys and
girls. The original endowment still enables the board of governors to allot a himited
numiber of scholarships. The chairman of the board of wovernors is ex officio manager
of the Villiers Primary School (off Nicholas St.) which is now under the National
Board of Primary Education. There is also a primary school for Protestant children
in Pery Square of which the Rector of St. Michacl’s church is manager.
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COISDE UM OIDEACHAIS GAIRME BEATHA
CATHRACH LUIMNI,

CEARD SCOIL CATHARDA (LUIMNI.
(Limerick Municipal Technical fnstitute)

DAY AND EVENING COURSES
These Courses include -
General Continuation; Commerce: Buildls o Mechanical
and Motor Car Fagineering Ilulnm! Lingineering,
Art, cte.

OTHER EVENING COURSES ANIP CLASSES :
Cabinet Mdlmm; Physics and Lhmmbh\\; Painting and
Decoratimg; Ladies” Tailoring; Home | Crafts; Art;
Art Crafts; Choral Singing; elc.

SPECIAL COURSES AND CLASSES:
\ecountancy  and  Seeretarial ; Imnl\mg}, Architectural
Design and - Structural  Engineering:; * Motor - Owner

Prrivers; Pharmaceutical Chemistry; Radio; Tele-
' communication and ‘I'ransmission,

UNIVERSITY EXTENSION CQURSES :
P're-Diploma and Diploma in Social and Heonomic Science.
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GAIRM SCOIL AINE
(St. Anne’s Vocational School)

DAY COURSES :

Phiese courses provide special training for employ-
ment as Tailoring and Dressmaking Apprentices, Pac-
tory Workers, Shop Assistants, cte. T'hie School has all
the aceessary equipment to provide this kpecial training.

EVENING COURSES AND
CLASSES :
tustruction 1s provided in Dress-
making, Ladies’” Thiloring, Cookery,
Sewing],  etc.
Special Hotel Trainees Course.

I'ull particulars njay be had from
the Chief Executive Officer,
Municipal Technical Institute,

Limerick.
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Technical Education

Technical education in the city traces its origin to a very small beginning made by
two Limerick women in the carly ‘nineties’. The city had reached its nadir in popula~
tion and commercial activity and its citizens were flecing from the spectre of unemi-
ployment, To meet the emergency, Miss Mary Caroline Doyle (daughter of the
Young Irclander) and Miss Graves (daughter of the Protestant Bishop of Lincrick)
assembled a group of poor boys and began to teach them fretwork and genersl
wood-crafts. The teaching was, of course, entirely gratuitous. Soon they added a
domiestic cconomy class for girls. Such was the success of the work that the authorities
decided to place it on a less precarious basis than its dependance upon unremuncrated
service, Salaried teachers were engaged and for many years classes were conducted
in the Athencum until the fine Renaissance building in O'Connell Avenue was
erected, in 1912, Scoil Alne, for girls, was built in 1939,

The Technical schools not only fulfil an excellent fumction in preparing youny nien
and women to take their part in the industrial and commercial life of the city, but
provide for their cultural development as well. Each school has its orchestra and its
debating socicty. Athletics are also excellently catered for.

The Churches of Limerick

The churches of Limerick, whether parochial or attached to the houses ot the
religious orders, all belong to the nincteenth and twentieth centuries. This is not
surprising when one considers that the Catholic Church in Ireland has been emancipa-
ted only 123 years. The parochial churches with one exception all belong to the post-
cmancipation period. All the churches of the religious orders are also modern. The
restoration of full civic rights to Catholics in 182y, encouraged the people and stimula-
ted their gencrosity to provide fitting homes for Catholic worship. In the present
work, it is possible only to give a fleeting glance at the story of cach of Limerick’s
noble churches.

Pride of place in any account of the churches must be conceded to the splendid
Cathedral Church of St. John, the spiritual centre of the Sce of Limerick. Its style is
Revival Gothic and was designed by Thomas Hardwicke. The foundation stone was
laid by Bishop Ryan on May 1st, 1856. It scems that at first the plan was to build a
commodious parish church and that it was only after the building had been i
progress that it was decided the new church should be the cathedral of the diocese.
The width of the aisles alone is a remarkable feature of the Cathedral. The A7
shaped roofs over them have the effect of darkening the nave of the building. Messrs,
Hennessy, a Limerick firm of architects, designed the spire which is the  highest in
Ircland. It will be noticed that the spire is more ornate in design than the main building,
yet its integration in the general plan is happily achieved. The Cathedral which was
first opened for public worship in July 1861, was consecrated in June 1894, The old
Church of St. John was built in 1753. Its site was between the present Cathedral and
the adjoining presbytery.

Parish Church of St. Michael. The present church of St. Michacel, which was buile
in 1881, replaced an carlier building which was erected in 1779, A snaall partof the
gospel transept of the old church was incorporated in the present building. In the old
church was held the first public mecting summoned to demand Catholic emancipa-
tion and the abolition of the tithe-system.  During the erection of the present church,
the corporation placed the Council Chamber of the town hall at the disposal of the
clergy to acconumodate the faithful for Sunday Mass. St. Michacl’s church is Hiberno-
Romanesque tn style and was the first of the city parish churches to be rebuilt since
Catholic Emancipation. St. Michacl’s is a mensal parish of the Lord Bishop of Limnerick.
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